PRESENT:

Trustees: Chair Randy Campbell, Vice-Chair Janet Barnes, Greg Agar, Jane Bryce, Ruth

Ann Dodman, Jack Fletcher, Malinda Little, Roberta Northmore, Angela

Richards, Kelley Robertson, and David Shortt

Student Trustees: Graysen Bathe-Minard and Darshan Shah

Staff: Director of Education John Howitt, joining virtually, Associate Director Brian

McKay, Superintendents of Education Emily Dixon, Gary Girardi, Ben Hazzard,

Mary Mancini, and Interim Superintendent of Education, Carrielyn Smith

Regrets: Superintendent of Education Angie Barrese and Student Trustee Makaiyah

Stonefish

Recording Secretary: Jaime Shannon, Executive Assistant to the Director

Call to Order: Chair Campbell called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.

Graysen Bathe-Minard, Darshan Shah, and Makaiyah Stonefish were introduced

as the Student Trustees for the 2023-2024 school year.

#2023-120

Approval of the Agenda

Moved by Greg Agar, seconded by Roberta Northmore,

"That the Agenda for the Regular Board Meeting of June 6, 2023 be approved."

CARRIED.

In Memoriam Chair Campbell read an In Memoriam for an incoming LKDSB student, an

LKDSB student, and an LKDSB Administrator. A moment of silence was

observed.

Chair Campbell read the Traditional Territorial Acknowledgement.

Declaration of Conflict of

Interest

None.

#2023-121

Approval of the Minutes

June/20/2023

Moved by David Shortt, seconded by Angela Richards,

"That the Board approve the Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of June 20,

2023."

CARRIED.

Business Arising

Motions Emanating from the Regular Board Private

None.

None.

Session

#2023-122

Moved by Janet Barnes, seconded by Kelley Robertson,

Action of the Regular Board Private Session be the Action of the Board

"That the Action of the Board in Private Session be the Action of the Board."

CARRIED.

Presentation – Director's Snapshots of Excellence

Director Howitt presented the <u>Director's Snapshots of Excellence for the period</u> of July to August 2023.

**Delegations** 

None.

Questions from the Public

None.

#2023-123 Schedule for Regular Board Meetings for the Period November 21, 2023 to November 19, 2024 Report B-23-103 Director Howitt presented the Schedule for Regular Board Meetings for the period of November 21, 2023 to November 19, 2024. He noted that the schedule was drafted based on the LKDSB Procedural By-laws, but it was recommended that the November 28, 2023 and January 9, 2024 Board Meetings not be included in the schedule. He explained that this would avoid three meetings in the month of November and a meeting held immediately after the Winter Break, which would only be 7 business days following the previous meeting in December. He noted that changes to the June 2024 meetings were not recommended, as they had been in the past, as the dates do not conflict with secondary graduation dates.

Moved by Kelley Robertson, seconded by Jane Bryce,

"That the Board approve the Regular Board Meeting Schedule for the period November 21, 2023 to November 19, 2024 without scheduling the November 28, 2023 and January 9, 2024 Board Meetings."

CARRIED.

Ontario Public School Boards' Association Update (OPSBA) Trustee Fletcher reported that a meeting regarding negotiations was scheduled on September 13, 2023 and that he would be attending a meeting on September 22 and 23, 2023 in Toronto.

Ministry of Education Summer 2023 Announcements Report B-23-104 Director Howitt provided Trustees with a summary of the multiple directives received from the Ministry of Education over the summer months. He relayed that the Ministry of Education has set three priorities: Achievement of Learning Outcomes in Core Academic Skills; Preparation of Students for Future Success; and Student Engagement & Well-Being, which boards are required to include in their multi-year plans. He noted that these priorities align with the LKDSB Strategic Priorities and will be incorporated into the multi-year Operational Plan to be presented to Trustees in October 2023. He provided an overview of the Policy Program Memos (PPM) recently provided by the Ministry, including: PPM 124: OSSD requirements – community involvement activities; PPM 132: Prior Learning Assessment and Recognition (PLAR) for mature students; PPM 151: Professional Activity Days devoted to Provincial Priorities; PPM 168: Reading Instruction and Early Reading Screening; and PPM 169: Student Mental Health. He also provided updates on the Canadian GED; Provincial Priorities on Student Achievement Regulation: Student Achievement Plan; Math Action Plan; Capital Priorities Program; and Procurement.

Following a Trustee question, Superintendent Mancini confirmed the lower limit for mature students is 21 years old.

A Trustee asked if the Professional Development Days requirements imposed by the province are expected to be met, considering the requirements already in place. Superintendent Hazzard responded that finding ways to integrate items together continues to be considered and noted that there are more contractual days for Elementary, which means allocation of time on those days is very strategic, while there is more flexibility for Secondary.

A Trustee asked if the funding of 6 Early Literacy Intervention Coaches is the same as the 2022-2023 school year. Superintendent Hazzard responded that it is additional staff hired for the 2023-2024 school year, who recently began working in schools completing early reading assessments and providing supports in Kindergarten to Grade 2 classrooms. He noted that they support every elementary school.

A Trustee asked if students should be provided the opportunity to provide input on items 10 and 11 of the Student Achievement Plan. Student Trustee Shah noted that he would appreciate that opportunity, as he struggles with information on post-secondary, and if he was directly involved he could provide other students with support. Director Howitt noted that he sees students in all 11 indicators, and there is a partnership with students along the way, as they can be seen in the graduation rates, EQAO assessments, and other measures.

A Trustee asked if items 10 and 11 are a measurement the Board must define in its plan or if they are defined by the province. Director Howitt responded that more information will be provided from the Ministry, as they are currently in the process of determining this, but it may not be provided until near the end of the school year.

A Trustee asked for further information on the changes to the Capital Priorities Program. Associate Director McKay explained that for any addition or new build, boards must demonstrate to the Ministry that the number of pupil spaces built will be occupied to 100% within 5 years' of opening, while prior to this requirement, demonstrating an occupation of 90% or higher was viewed positively. He added that the Ministry is also looking at the utilization rate of surrounding schools, and suggesting boundary reviews, which can be contentious in the community.

A Trustee asked if Errol Village Public School is expected to be at 100% capacity once the 2-classroom addition is complete. Associate Director McKay responded that the students are already included in the enrolment numbers at the school, but their classrooms are housed in portables. He noted that the Ministry is increasingly looking at portables as a permanent solution. He added that the Ministry has introduced a design catalogue in order to standardize design, reduce the timeline for building schools, and reduce costs, which does not allow boards to meet individual community needs.

A Trustee commented that they were disappointed in the design catalogue as they did not want to see institutions built, but rather places of learning that fit communities.

A Trustee suggested that the Board may struggle with reaching 100% utilization, and that boards should receive funding for capital projects for reasons other than utilization. They hoped these other factors could be brought forth in discussions with the Ministry. Associate Director McKay responded that 100% utilization is what is looked at in the applications, and that is only if the surrounding schools are also full. He added that it is difficult to compete with

boards who have had significant increases in population, but he and Director Howitt will engage with Ministers of Provincial Parliament (MPP), and will work on find ways to differentiate the LKDSB applications.

A Trustee asked if a daycare could be added to a school with empty space and asked what the process would be if there is a community need. Associate Director McKay responded that using unutilized space in a school for a daycare has shown to be successful in the past, and it would help the percentage at the school. He added that there would have to be a need in the community, and if a community member would like to express this need they would contact the daycare representative at their municipal government, who would then discuss the request with LKDSB and CLASS staff. He explained that if there is a need in the community, a daycare provider would be partnered with and Capital Priorities funding would be the funding source used to make the space ready, if necessary.

LKDSB Operational Plan 2022-2023 Report B-23-105 Director Howitt presented the 2022-2023 Operational Plan, which reflects the actual outcomes from 2022-2023 school year. He relayed that the 2023-2024 Operational Plan will be brought to Trustees in October 2023, but noted that the version brought forth may be in draft form as some information is not yet available.

Director Howitt highlighted items from the 2022-2023 Operational Plan and remarked that in the 2022-2023 school year, the Senior Team was able to refocus their attention to a greater degree on non-COVID-19 items and see greater successes in goals.

A Trustee noted that many of the outcomes were awaiting data from the province and felt the plan may be considered incomplete until the actual results were received. Director Howitt agreed that it was difficult to finalize the Operational Plan from the previous school year and move forward to the current school year when the data is not available. He noted that EQAO data is reported on its own as well as in the Operational Plan, so Trustees will receive the data at that time.

A Trustee asked for the participation rate on the Climate Surveys. Director Howitt responded that the response rate for students was very high as it was completed during class time, and significant work was undertaken in advertising the Climate Survey for completion by parent/guardians, which helped increase the participation rate significantly. Superintendent Girardi relayed that he would follow-up at the next Board Meeting with this data.

A Trustee asked for information on how the Multi-Disciplinary Team (MDT) helped in the area of Sense of Belonging from the Climate Survey. Director Howitt shared that the MDT was an interim measure and will not be continuing for the 2023-2024 school year, as the funding has been reallocated to support other priorities such as math and early literacy. He explained that their work was to build capacity in schools based on the Climate Survey results for individual schools. He added that the Climate Survey is completed every two years, so the data on whether the capacity building had an impact will not be available until the next Climate Survey is completed and results are released. Superintendent Girardi relayed that the process to review the questions for the Climate Survey process has started, which includes Safe Schools staff, Student

Support Services and Well-Being staff, and partners from other areas of the Board. He explained that the plan is to conduct the survey in Spring 2024 with the reports released in Fall 2024.

Chair Campbell thanked Director Howitt and Senior Administration for the indepth report.

2023 Secondary summer Learning Program Report B-23-106 Superintendent Mancini reported to Trustees on the 2023 Secondary Summer Learning Program that supported students in accumulating credits towards graduation. She remarked that 1403 students completed the program, supported by 93 staff members, and noted that full course online learning is the largest component of the program, with 37 courses offered, and 978 students who completed courses with a 91% success rate. She reported that 14 credit recovery online learning courses were offered, with 85 students engaged, and many secondary schools provided credit rescue opportunities, with 129 students involved and 134.5 credits earned. She reported that travel for Credit Careers and Civics was offered which included an online learning component and a trip to Ottawa, Montreal, and New York City, which 30 students successfully completed. She added that in-person programs offered included First Nations Metis and Inuit (FNMI) Integrated Arts, a 4-week land-based education for self-identified Indigenous students, of which 40 students from Grades 8 through 10 earned a credit, a reach ahead opportunity for Grade 8 students to complete Grade 9 technology at Chatham Kent Secondary School, Grade 11 Construction Engineering Technology - Canoe Building at Great Lakes Secondary School, which offered self-identified Indigenous students an opportunity to build a birchbark canoe using Indigenous construction methods and tools, credit recovery for students through Walpole Island Summer School Program, dual credit courses with Lambton College and St. Clair College, Summer co-op, which 124 students participated in, and ongoing credit support for students through in-person special education classes.

Superintendent Mancini thanked System Coordinator Paul Wiersma, who oversaw the program and ensured all credits were recorded prior to the new school year.

A Trustee asked if feedback was requested from students on how the program can be improved for the following year. Superintendent Mancini responded that teachers individually survey the students in each online course, and there is a very involved reach out to parent/guardians and students to ensure they are engaging in the program. She noted that the program is successful and unique and offers supports to students that are not necessarily offered by other boards.

A Trustee asked for the costs involved in the Travel for Credit Careers and Civics course and what is being done to breakdown barriers to ensure it is available to any student interested. Superintendent Mancini responded that the cost is around \$1300 per student, which is a significant barrier, and there will be discussion on how to continue the program, or if it should be continued, for that very reason. She added that a traditional Civics and Careers course is offered through the Summer Program at no cost.

A Trustee noted that the canoe building exercise was one of the Board Action Plan (BAP) initiatives for the 2022-2023 school year and asked if it was

financially feasible and how many students participated in the program. Superintendent Dixon responded that she believed 6 students participated in the course and the project was not completed in the project timeframe, but it is continuing to be built.

A Trustee asked what will be done with the canoe and how it is being finished now that the students are starting the new school year. Superintendent Dixon responded that it is being stored at Aamjiwnaang First Nation but would provide a follow-up at the next Board Meeting on who will be completing the project.

A Trustee congratulated Superintendent Mancini on the 91% success rate for the online learning component.

Correspondence

August 15, 2023 Ministry of Education letter in response to May 17, 2023 letter from LKDSB Chair regarding Transportation funding for the 2023-2024 School Year.

Following a Trustee question, Associate Director McKay explained that there is no additional funding for the 2023-2024 school year, but Administration, along with the St. Clair Catholic District School Board and Chatham-Kent Lambton Administrative School Services (CLASS), continue to engage with the Ministry and provide data, to inform on the actual results against the funding formula, to hopefully alleviate pressures for the 2024-2025 school year. He added that school boards across southwestern Ontario are discussing how they may approach the Ministry as a consolidated group.

**New Business** 

None.

**Trustee Questions** 

A Trustee asked if the additional funding to create more student spaces and licensed childcare spaces within the Forest Kindergarten to Grade 12 school will change the design of the school. Associate Director McKay responded that from the beginning of the process the school was designed to fit the full pupil enrolment and not the originally approved spaces, so a redesign was not necessary.

A Trustee asked for an update on the progression of the design process for the Kindergarten to Grade 12 school. Associate Director McKay responded that the architects continue to move forward with preparing the tender document and are on track for a late November or early December 2023 tender, which would mean the tender could be awarded in January or February 2024 with a Spring 2024 groundbreaking. He explained that if the cost estimate is as expected then the tender process can be started, but if it is higher than expected Administration will need to work with the Ministry.

Notices of Motion

Director Howitt served Notice of Motion, "That the Board approve the following changes to the LKDSB Procedural By-Laws."

## SECTION 3 REGULAR AND SPECIAL MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

3.17
Posing
Questions at
Meetings

In addition to the foregoing, persons or groups may pose questions to the Board in accordance with the following procedure:

 a) the questioner shall submit the question either orally or in writing to the Chair of the Board Secretary of the Board or

- designate seven business days' prior to the Board Meeting;
- b) The Chair, Vice-Chair and Director of Education will review all submissions at the Agenda Review Meeting prior to the Board Meeting and determine if the question will be asked at the Board Meeting.
- c) If the questioner's submission has been approved, they must be in attendance at the Board Meeting to ask the submitted question in order for their question to be answered;
- -bd) the Chair or their designate shall answer the question if the information is immediately available or send a written reply following the meeting with this response shared during business arising at a subsequent meeting; and
- -c) the questioner may ask a follow-up question for clarification; and
- de) the questioner shall not address confidential personal, property, legal or negotiation matters.

3.18

The Chair may limit the number of questioners and questions as they see fit.

3.19 Public Gallery Closed

If the Public Gallery is closed, questions must be submitted through email to the Secretary of the Board or designate by noon on the day of seven business days' prior to the Board Meeting. The procedure for posing a question to the Board will be consistent with Section 3.17. Arrangements will be made for the questioner to ask the submitted question remotely.

3.20 Presentations

An employee or employee group may make a presentation to the Board relating to a specific issue, matters of general interest to the Education system and matters of information to Trustees. Individuals or employee groups requesting permission to appear and speak before the Board or a Committee of the Board must submit their request and their materials in writing to the Secretary of the Board at least seven working business days' prior to the meeting.

## SECTION 15 PERFORMANCE APPRAISAL OF THE DIRECTOR OF EDUCATION

15.4

The Director's Performance Appraisal Report shall be considered by the Board, in private session, at any one or more of its meetings and the Board shall receive the report and deliver a reply prior to the beginning of at the first Board Meeting of the next school year which shall include the following:

- a) concerns of the Board with respect to the implementation of Board policy and Strategic Plan;
- b) concerns with respect to the implementation of Ministry policy;
- c) matters which shall be addressed by the Board and/or legislations or Board Committees within the ensuing school year;
- d) other matters in reply to the Director's Performance Appraisal Report as may be appropriate.

Announcements	The next Regular Board Meeting will be held on Tuesday, September 26, 2023 at the Sarnia Education Centre at 7:00 p.m.
Adjournment	There being no further business of the Board, Chair Campbell declared the Meeting adjourned at 8:49 p.m.
Chair of the Board	Director of Education and Secretary of the Board